STATE OF HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AIRPORTS

ADDENDUM NO. 1

FOR

APRON LIGHTING SYSTEM EMERGENCY REPAIRS KAHULUI AIRPORT KAHULUI, MAUI, HAWAII STATE PROJECT NO. CM1424-53

OCTOBER 16, 2023

This Addendum shall make the following amendments to the Bid Documents.

A. NOTICE TO BIDDERS

1. Delete the NOTICE TO BIDDERS and replace with the attached NOTICE TO BIDDERS dated r10/16/2023.

B. TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Delete the Table of Contents and replace with attached Table of Contents dated r10/16/2023.

C. SPECIFICATIONS

- SECTION 01300 SUBMITTALS
 Delete SECTION 01300 SUBMITTALS and replace with attached SECTION 01300 SUBMITTALS dated r10/16/2023.
- SECTION 01562 MANAGEMENT OF CONTAMINATED MEDIAS
 Delete SECTION 01562 MANAGEMENT OF CONTAMINATED MEDIAS and
 replace with attached SECTION 01562 MANAGEMENT OF CONTAMINATED
 MEDIAS dated r10/16/2023.

D. PROPOSAL

1. Delete Proposal Schedule pages P-7 and P-8 and replace with Proposal Schedule pages P-7 and P-8 dated r10/16/2023.

The following is provided for information:

E. PRE-BID MEETING

1. The October 11, 2023, Pre-Bid Meeting Minutes and attendance sheet is attached for your information.

F. RESPONSES TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI/QUESTIONS)

See attached responses dated 10/16/2023.

Please acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1 by recording the date of its receipt in the space provided on Page PF-4 of the Proposal.

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN Director of Transportation

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), Chapter 103D

SEALED BIDS for APRON LIGHTING SYSTEM EMERGENCY REPAIRS,

KAHULUI AIRPORT, KAHULUI, MAUI, HAWAII, PROJECT NO. CM1424-53, will begin as advertised in HIePRO. Bidders shall register and submit complete bids through HIePRO only. Refer to the following HIePRO link for important information on registering: https://hiepro.ehawaii.gov/welcome.html.

Plans, specifications, proposal, and other documents designated or incorporated by reference shall be available in HIePRO.

Deadline to submit bids scheduled for October 27, 2023, at 2:00 p.m., Hawaii Standard Time (HST), is HEREBY POSTPONED until November 10, 2023, at 2:00 p.m., HST. Bidders shall submit and upload the complete proposal to HIePRO prior to the bid opening date and time. Proposals received after said due date and time shall not be considered. Any additional support documents explicitly designated as confidential and/or proprietary shall be uploaded as a separate file to HIePRO. Do not include confidential and/or proprietary documents with the proposal. The record of each bidder and respective bid shall be open to public inspection. FAILURE TO UPLOAD THE PROPOSAL TO HIEPRO SHALL BE GROUNDS FOR REJECTION OF THE BID.

The scope of work consists of replacing the existing pole mounted airport apron lighting fixtures with new fixtures, including control boxes and new pole mounted lighting mast, at the Kahului Airport. The estimated cost of construction is between five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000.00) and eight hundred thousand dollars (\$800,000.00).

To be eligible for award, bidders shall possess a valid State of Hawaii General

Engineering "A" license or Specialty "C-13", license at the time of bidding.



A one-time site visit will be scheduled on October 20, 2023, at 10:00 a.m., HST. Interested bidders are to report to the Maui District Airport Manager's office. All prospective bidders or their representatives (employees) are encouraged to attend the site visit, but attendance is not mandatory.

The GENERAL PROVISIONS dated 2016 applicable to this project are available on the internet at http://hidot.hawaii.gov/administration/con/.

A pre-bid conference is scheduled for October 11, 2023, at 10:00 a.m., HST on Microsoft Teams. Due to the impacts of COVID-19, attendees shall dial the number listed below to participate by teleconference. Dial in number: (808) 829-4853, Phone Conference ID: 518 026 303#

All prospective bidders and/or their respective representatives are encouraged to attend, however, attendance is not mandatory. All information presented at the pre-bid conference is provided for clarification and information only. Any amendments to the bid documents shall be made by formal addendum and posted in HIePRO.

All Request for Information (RFI) questions and substitution requests shall be submitted via HIePRO <u>no later than fourteen (14) calendar days</u> before bid opening. RFI questions received after the stated deadline will not be addressed. Verbal RFIs will not receive a response. All responses to RFI questions shall be issued by formal addendum and posted in HIePRO.

<u>Apprenticeship Preference</u>. A five percent bid adjustment for bidders that are party to apprenticeship agreements pursuant to HRS §103-55.6, is applicable to this project.

Employment of State Residents on Construction Procurement Contracts. Compliance with HRS §103B-3, is a requirement for this project whereby a minimum of 80 percent of the

bidder's work force on this project shall consist of Hawaii residents.

Campaign contributions by State and County Contractors. Contractors are hereby notified

of the applicability of HRS §11-355, which states that campaign contributions are prohibited from

specified State or county government contractors during the term of the contract if the contractors

are paid with funds appropriated by a legislative body. For more information, contact the

Campaign Spending Commission at (808) 586-0285.

Protests. Any protest of this solicitation shall be submitted in writing to the Director of

Transportation, in accordance with HRS §103D-701, and Hawaii Administrative Rules §3-126.

The Equal Employment Opportunity Regulations of the Secretary of Labor implementing

Executive Order 11246, as amended, shall be complied with on this project.

The U.S. Department of Transportation Regulation entitled "Nondiscrimination in

Federally-Assisted Programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation," Title 49, Code of

Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 21 is applicable to this project. Bidders are hereby notified that

the Department of Transportation will affirmatively ensure that the contract entered into pursuant

to this advertisement will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder without discrimination on

the grounds of race, color, national origin or sex (as directed by 23 CFR Part 200).

For additional information, contact Mr. Benton Ho, our Airports State Project Manager at

(808) 838-8804, or via email at benton.ho@hawaii.gov.

The State reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any defects in said

proposals in the best interest of the public.

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN

Director of Transportation

Posted on HIePRO: October 16, 2023

NTB - 3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Pages
Notice to Bidders		1 to 3
Instructions for Contr	ractor's Licensing	HAI-1
Special Provisions		SP-1 to SP-12
SPECIFICATIONS		
	. PROVISIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION PRO	DJECTS 2016
(Not Physically Inclu	ded in the Bid Documents)	
PART II - TECHNIC	AL PROVISIONS	
DIVISION 1 - GENE	RAL REQUIREMENTS	
SECTION 01000	Description of Work	01000-1 to 01000-5
SECTION 01000 SECTION 01300	Submittals	
SECTION 01300 SECTION 01400	Contractor Quality Control Program	
SECTION 01400 SECTION 01524	Construction Waste Management	
52011011 01321	APPENDIX A	
SECTION 01533	Barricades	
SECTION 01560	Environmental Controls	
SECTION 01561	Construction Site Runoff Control Program	
SECTION 01562	Management of Contaminated Medias	
SECTION 01565	Security Measures	
SECTION 01580	Temporary Facilities and Utilities	
SECTION 01700	Mobilization and Demobilization	01700-1 to 01700-2
DIVISION 2 TO 15 (NOT USED)	
DIVISION 16 – ELE	<u>CTRICAL</u>	
	General Electrical Requirements	
WAGE RATE SCHE	DULE (Not Physically included in the Bid Do	ocuments)
	pter 104, HRS, Wages and Hours of Employee (dated 12/04R)	
Proposal		P-1 to P-6
PRON LIGHTING SYSTEM	M EMERGENCY REPAIRS	Addendum No.

APRON LIGHTING SYSTEM EMERGENCY REPAIRS KAHULUI AIRPORT STATE PROJECT NO. CM1424-53

Addendum No.1 r10/16/2023 TABLE OF CONTENTS TOC-1



	Proposal Schedule	P-7 to P-8
51	urety Bid Bond	BB-1
S	ample Forms	
	Sample Contract	K-1 to K-3
	Performance Bond (Surety)	1 to 2
	Performance Bond	PB-1 to PB-2
	Labor and Material Payment Bond (Surety)	1 to 2
	Labor and Material Payment Bond	LB-1 to LB-2
	Chapter 104, HRS Compliance Certificate	1
	CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE FOR EMPLOYMENT OF STATE RESIDENTS	1 to 4

SECTION 01300 - SUBMITTALS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

The General Provisions for Construction Projects (2016), Special Provisions and General Requirements of the Specifications, apply to the work specified in this section.

1.02 PROJECT DOCUMENTATION

The contract will not be considered complete until required submittals have been received and accepted by the State.

At the discretion of the Project Manager, the number of copies to be submitted may differ from that specified in this Section.

1.03 <u>DETAILED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE</u>

- A. The Contractor shall submit a detailed construction schedule to the Engineer for review, no later than 30 calendar days after execution of the contract. The detailed construction schedule shall be based on a detailed critical path analysis of construction activities and sequence of operations needed for the orderly performance and completion of any separable parts of any work and all work in accordance with the contract. The schedule shall be Critical Path Method (CPM) type in the form of an arrow diagram and activity listing or comprehensive bar graph. The network diagram shall show in detail and in orderly sequence all activities on a time scale, their descriptions, durations and dependencies, necessary and required to complete all work and any separable parts thereof. The schedule shall show in detail the following information for each activity:
 - 1. Identification by code numbers and description;
 - 2. Duration;
 - Craft and Equipment;
 - 4. Earliest start and finish dates:
 - 5. Latest start and finish dates;
 - 6. Total and free float time; and
 - 7. Highlighted Critical Path
- B. The construction schedule shall be complete in all respects, covering in addition to activities at the site of work, off-site activities such as design, fabrication, and procurement of equipment; the scheduled delivery dates of such equipment; submittal and approval of shop drawings and samples; ordering and delivery of

materials; inspections; and testing. The schedule shall also include a manpower forecast by crafts. The detailed construction schedule shall be supplemented by a three-week schedule prepared by the Contractor and submitted to the Engineer on a weekly basis. The Contractor shall promptly inform the Engineer of any proposed change in the schedule and shall furnish the Engineer with a revised schedule and cash flow diagram within 15 calendar days after approval of such change.

The schedule shall be kept up to date, taking into account the actual progress of work and shall be updated, if necessary, every 30 calendar days. The updated schedule shall, as determined by the Engineer, be sufficient to meet the requirements for the completion of the separable parts of work and the entire projects as set forth in the contract.

Upon commencing work, the Contractor shall submit at the start of each week to the Engineer for review, a detailed three (3) week construction schedule.

- C. If at any time during the progress of the Work, the Contractor's actual progress appears to the Engineer to be inadequate to meet the requirements of the contract, the Engineer will notify the Contractor of such imminent or actual noncompliance with the contract. The Contractor shall thereupon take such steps as may be necessary to improve his progress and the Engineer may require an increase in the labor force, the number of shifts, and/or overtime operations, days of work and/or the amount of construction plants all without additional cost to the State. Neither such notice by the Engineer nor the Engineer's failure to issue such notice shall relieve the Contractor from his obligation to achieve the quality of work and rate of progress required by the contract. Failure of the Contractor to comply with instructions of the Engineer under these provisions may be grounds for determination by the State that the Contractor is not prosecuting work with such diligence as will assure completion within the times specified. Upon such determination, the State may employ labor and equipment and charge the Contractor for the cost thereof, including depreciation for plant and equipment or may terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the performance of the contract, or any separable part thereof, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the contract.
- D. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer one (1) reproducible and three (3) prints of the detailed construction schedule and of each revised schedule submitted thereafter.

1.04 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

- A. The Contractor shall submit the Schedule of Values to the Engineer for review, no later than 30 calendar days after execution of the Contract.
- B. Format and Content: Use Proposal Schedule and/or the Project Specifications table of contents as a guide to establish the format for the Schedule of Values. Provide at least one line item for each Specification Section. Provide a breakdown of the contract sum in sufficient detail to facilitate continued

evaluation of Applications for Payment and progress reports. Break principle work or subcontract amounts down into several smaller identifiable items of work.

- C. Identification: Include the following Project identification on the schedule of values:
 - 1. Project name and location
 - 2. Project number
 - Contractor's name and address
 - Contract No.
 - 5. Date of submittal
- D. Arrange the Schedule of Values in tabular form with separate columns to indicate the following items listed:
 - 1. Related Specification Section or Division
 - 2. Description of work
 - 3. Dollar value and percent complete
- E. Correlate line items in the Schedule of Values with other required administrative schedules and forms including;
 - 1. Construction Schedule
 - 2. Application for Payment forms including continuation sheets
 - List of Subcontractors
 - 4. List of principle suppliers and fabricators
 - 5. Schedule of submittals
- F. Round amount to nearest whole dollar; the total shall equal the contract sum.
- G. Provide a separate line item in the Schedule of Values for each part of the work where Applications for Payment may include materials or equipment, purchased, fabricated or stored, but not yet installed.
- H. Schedule Updating: Update and resubmit the Schedule of Values prior to the next Applications for Payment or when Change Orders or Construction Change Directives result in a change in the Contract Sum.

1.05 OTHER SUBMITTALS REQUIRED BEFORE CONSTRUCTION

The Contractor shall submit the following items prior to or at the pre-construction meeting or unless otherwise noted:

- A. Name, residence phone number, addresses and scope of authority for the following persons:
 - 1. Superintendent
 - 2. Contractor's authorized representative to sign documents
 - 3. Two (2) additional persons who can be contacted during non-working hours for emergencies.
 - 4. Field Office location and phone numbers (cellular, pager, fax, etc.)
- B. Name of Safety Officer
- Notice of Materials to be furnished
- D. Three (3) copies each of Certificates of Insurance. The State of Hawaii, Department of Transportation, Airports Division shall be named as additionally insured. The project number and project title shall be referenced in the Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles. If canceled, 30 days written notice to the State of Hawaii must be given. If certificates are not correct, work cannot proceed.
- E. Three (3) copies each Insurance and Tax Rates.
- F. List of apprentices who will be working on the project supported with the Statement of Apprenticeship or copy of the Apprenticeship Agreements registered with the State Board, for each apprentice.
- G. List of equipment to be used on the job. Designate maximum working height and capacity of equipment involved and their respective rental rates.
- H. Three (3) copies of an expenditure (cash flow) plan consisting of an anticipated work completion graph plotting contract time and gross payment anticipated.

1.06 SHOP DRAWINGS, SAMPLES, CATALOG CUTS, AND CERTIFICATES

- A. Submittal Schedule: Prior to the submission of any shop drawings or submittals, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for review, a submittal schedule. The schedule shall identify the subject matter of each submittal, the corresponding specification section number and the proposed date of submission. During the progress of work, the Contractor shall revise and resubmit the submittal schedule as directed by the Engineer.
 - B. The Contractor shall submit for review to the Engineer, or to a

representative designated by the Engineer, six (6) copies of all shop drawings, samples, catalog cuts and certificates. Three (3) copies will be returned to the Contractor with information of review action. The Contractor shall submit additional quantities for their subcontractor's or supplier's use. Each shop drawing, certificate of compliance, sample, and equipment list shall be checked and certified correct by the Contractor and shall be identified with the applicable information specified hereinafter under "Submittal Identification."

Items are to be reviewed prior to commencing fabrication or delivery of material to the job site.

C. Each copy of the drawings, certificates, catalog cuts, and lists reviewed by the Engineer will be stamped "REVIEW ACTION" with the appropriate action noted therein. The review of the Engineer shall not be construed as a complete check but will indicate only that the general method of construction and detailing is satisfactory. Acceptance of such drawings will not relieve the Contractor the responsibility of conforming to the contract drawings and specifications or for any error or omission which may exist as the Contractor shall be responsible for the dimensions and design of adequate connections, details, and satisfactory construction of all work. Each shop drawing submitted for review shall have, in the lower right-hand corner just above title, a white space 4" x 4" in which the Engineer can place the stamp and indicate action taken. The Contractor shall also inform their subcontractors to provide this space in their preparation of shop drawings.

1.07 MAINTENANCE DATA AND OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS

Six (6) copies of maintenance data and operating instructions shall be submitted by the Contractor at the conclusion of the equipment installation. The manuals shall be assembled in one or more binders, each with a title page, typed table of contents, and heavy section dividers with numbered plastic index tabs. The binders shall be a minimum of 2 inches thick, three ring, "D slant" with hard covers. All data shall be punched for binding and composition and printing shall be arranged so that punching does not obliterate any data. The project number, project title, and Airport shall be inserted in the front and backbone binder cover.

The Contractor shall submit a draft to the Engineer for review prior to the submission of the final copies.

The manual shall include separate sections describing each equipment. Provide a general description of the equipment, instructions for operation, maintenance, recommended inspection points and periods for inspection, testing, adjustments, calibration procedures with illustrations, wiring diagrams, trouble shooting situations and solutions, and repair methods in a practical, complete, and comprehensive manner.

For each equipment, include information on detailed parts listings (part numbers and costs) with the manufacturer's name, address, contact person, e-mail address and phone/fax numbers. Provide the contact name, address, e-mail address and phone/fax numbers of the distributor in the State of Hawaii for each

equipment.

Include a separate section on warranty information on all products and equipment. Provide this information in a tabular format with a listing on all products and equipments with warranty start and completion dates for each item.

Include separate sections on all approved submittals, test reports, certifications, etc.

All information shall be arranged in a logical, orderly sequence. Manuals submitted by the manufacturer will not be accepted.

1.08 TEST REPORTS

Six copies of test reports for any material used in this Contract shall be submitted when specified or required by the Engineer.

1.09 SUBMITTAL IDENTIFICATION

A. have a	rubber stamp made up in the following format:
B.	
	General Contractor's Name
	PROJECT TITLE:
	AIRPORT: STATE PROJECT NO:
	AIP PROJECT NO:
	THIS SUBMITTAL HAS BEEN CHECKED BY THIS GENERAL CONTRACTOR
	AND IS CERTIFIED CORRECT AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.
	ITEM NO.
	SUBMITTAL NUMBER
	DATE RECEIVED
	SPECIFICATION SECTION #SPECIFICATION PARAGRAPH #
	DRAWING NUMBER
	SUBCONTRACTOR NAME
	SUPPLIER NAME
	MANUFACTURER NAME
	CERTIFIED BY (Contractor's Signature, Date)
	(Contractor's Name and Title)

C. This stamp "filled in" should appear on each reproducible shop drawing, on the cover sheet of copies of test and mill reports, certificates of compliance, catalog

cuts, brochures, etc. The stamp should be placed on a heavy stock paper merchandise (approximately 3" x 6") and one tag tied to each sample submitted for approval. The tag on the samples should state what the sample is, so that if the tag is accidentally separated from the sample, they can be matched up again. The back of this tag will be used by the Engineer for receipt, approval, and log stamp for any comments that relates to the sample.

- D. Submission Number: Each submission is to be sequentially numbered in the space provided in the Contractor's stamp. Correspondence and transmittal will refer to this number.
- E. The Contractor shall ensure that all submittals, including shop drawings, are complete and in conformance to the requirements of the Contract specifications prior to submission to the State for review and acceptance. Incomplete submittals will not be processed by the State and returned to the Contractor for correction. Any cost impacts and delays in the Project schedule as a result of incomplete submittals shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

1.10 <u>AS-BUILT DRAWINGS</u>

As-built drawings shall conform to the requirements of Section 5.8 - "Coordination Between the Contractor and the State" of the General Provisions for Construction Projects (2016), and the following requirements:

The Contractor shall maintain on the job site a set of full-size contract drawings, marking them in red to show all variations between the construction actually provided and that indicated or specified in the contract documents, including buried or concealed construction. (Section 5.8 (a) Drawings and Special Provisions of the General Provisions for Construction Projects.)

Where a choice of material or method is permitted herein or where variations in scope of character of work from that of the original contract or authorized, the drawings shall be marked to define the construction actually provided. Where equipment installation is involved, the size, manufacturer's name, model number, power input or output characteristics as applicable shall be shown on the as-built drawings.

The representation of such changes shall conform to standard drafting practice and shall include such supplementary notes, legends, and details as necessary to clearly portray the as-built construction.

The drawings shall be maintained and updated on a daily basis. The Contractor shall stamp, sign, and date each sheet with the following stamp:

AS-BUILT DRAWINGS/SPECIFICATIONS

This certifies that the dimensions and details shown on this sheet reflect the dimensions and details, and specifications as constructed in the field.

CONTRACTOR'S NAME	
Signature	Date

Monthly and final payments to the Contractor shall be subject to prior approval of the drawings. On completion of the work, both sets of marked-up drawings shall be delivered to the Engineer and shall be subject to approval before acceptance.

1.11 GUARANTEES

Guarantee periods shall start at time of acceptance in writing by the State.

All guarantees and warranties shall be made out to the "State of Hawaii." Supplier and subcontractor guarantees shall be co-signed by the Contractor.

The Contractor is solely responsible for coincidence or non-coincidence of factory warranties or equipment guarantees, and the Contractor's own warranties and guarantees as required by the contract. The Contractor is solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the installation of equipment and materials so as to take maximum advantage of factory warranties.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (Not Used)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (Not Used)

PART 4 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

4.01 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

Work under this section will not be measured nor paid for separately but shall be considered incidental to and included in the bid prices for the various items of work in this project.

END OF SECTION

<u>SECTION 01562 – MANAGEMENT OF CONTAMINATED MEDIAS</u>

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

The General Provisions, Special Provisions, and General Requirements of the Specifications apply to the work specified in this section.

1.2 DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section describes procedures for the management of contaminated media (soil, groundwater, and soil vapor) that may be disturbed during excavation activities associated with this project.
- B. The Contractor shall supply all labor, materials, and equipment necessary for the removal, temporary storage, testing, handling, soil backfilling and management of contaminated media to carry out the work in accordance with these specifications, and all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations and latest amendments.
- C. The Contractor shall examine the State of Hawaii, Department of Transportation, Airports Division (DOTA) Programmatic Environmental Hazard Evaluation and Environmental Hazard Management Plan (DOTA EHE-EHMP) and, if included as part of these specifications, the Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) Phase II, to understand the conditions that may affect work and performance. Should the Contractor deviate from the DOTA EHE-EHMP or ESA, the Contractor shall be responsible to prepare a DOH required Construction EHMP (C-EHMP) utilizing the C-EHMP Addendum Template or most recent version provided by DOH, also known as a Site-Specific EHMP. Any deviation will require approval by the State of Hawaii, Department of Health (HDOH) and DOTA Environmental Section (DOTA AIR-EE) prior to implementation, using the forms provided in Appendix B of the DOTA EHE-EHMP. The forms should detail deviations from standard practices in the text and explain how those deviations will be protective of human health and the environment. The forms should be submitted to HDOH and DOTA AIR-EE for review and approval if deviations are requested or if notifying of a release.
- D. It should be noted that the DOTA EHE-EHMP is for Contaminants of Potential Concern (COPCs) which include, but not limited to, the following:
 - Petroleum Substances, e.g., TPH, TPH-g, TPH-d, TPH-o, BTEX, and PAHs.
 - Chlorinated Solvents, e.g., VOCs
 - Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)
 - Pesticides, e.g., chlordane
 - Heavy Metals, e.g., Arsenic, Barium, Cadmium, Total Chromium, Lead, Mercury, Selenium, and Silver.

In addition, free product (e.g., gasoline, diesel fuel, fuel oils, lubricating oils, benzene, toluene, xylenes) may be encountered in areas of previous petroleum releases.

Should the ESA Phase II identify contaminants other than those listed above or there is a risk to human health and/or the environment (such as indoor air quality in an occupied building), the Contractor shall be responsible to revise, update, and finalize the C-EHMP Addendum. The Contractor shall coordinate with, as well as have their C-EHMP approved by HDOH prior to the start of any ground disturbing activities.

1.3 <u>REFERENCES</u>

- A. Programmatic Environmental Hazard Evaluation and Environmental Hazard Management Plan dated July 2019, or its latest edition.
- B. DOTA's Storm Water Management Program Plan (SWMPP) for the Daniel K. Inouye International Airport (HNL) and Kahului Airport (OGG), including DOTA's Construction Activities BMP Field Manual dated August 2019, or its latest edition.
- C. All work under this contract shall be performed in strict accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations, standards, and codes governing contaminated media.
- D. The most recent editions of any relevant regulations, standards, documents, or codes shall be in effect, including, but not limited to, the following. Where conflicts among the requirements or with these specifications exists, the most stringent requirements shall apply.
 - 1. 29 CFR 1910, "Occupational Safety and Health Standards".
 - 2. 29 CFR 1926, "Safety and Health Regulations for Construction".
 - 3. 40 CFR 50, "National Primary and Secondary Ambient Air Quality Standards A".
 - 4. 40 CFR 122, "EPA Administered Permit Program: The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System".
 - 5. 40 CFR 261, "Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste".
 - 6. 40 CFR 263, "Standards Applicable to Transporters of Hazardous Waste".
 - 7. 40 CFR 302, "Designation, Reportable Quantities, and Notification".
 - 8. 49 CFR 172, Subpart E, "Labeling".
 - 9. 49 CFR 172, Subpart F, "Placarding".
 - 10. The Hawaii Environmental Response Law (Hawaii Revised Statutes [HRS] Chapter 128D) and the State Contingency Plan (Hawaii Administrative Rules [HAR] Title 11, Chapters 451-1–451-24).
 - 11. The Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response Office Technical Guidance Manual (TGM) for Implementation of the State Contingency Plan (Interim Final, June 21, 2009).
 - 12. Hawaii Hazardous Waste Laws and Regulations (HRS Chapter 342J, HAR Title

- 11, Chapters 260.1–279.1).
- 13. Hawaii Solid Waste Laws and Regulations (HRS Chapters 342H and I, HAR Title 11, Chapter 58.1).
- 14. Hawaii Underground Storage Tank Laws and Regulations (HRS Chapter 342L; HAR Title 11, Chapter 280.1).
- 15. Hawaii Water Quality Standards (HAR Title 11, Chapter 54).
- 16. Hawaii Ambient Air Quality Standards (HAR Title 11, Chapter 59).
- 17. Hawaii Occupational Safety and Health Standards (HAR Title 12, Subtitle 8).
- 18. Hawaii Department of Health, Office of Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response. Screening for Environmental Hazards at Sites with Contaminated Soil and Groundwater. Website URL: http://eha-web.doh.hawaii.gov/eha-cma/Leaders/HEER/EALs. Fall 2011 (and updates).
- 19. Hawaii Department of Health, Office of Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response. Guidance for Soil Stockpile Characterization and Evaluation of Imported and Exported Fill Material. Website URL: http://ehaweb.doh.hawaii.gov/eha-cma/Leaders/HEER/technical-guidance-and-factsheets. October 8, 2017 (and updates).
- 20. Hawaii Department of Health, Office of Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response. Construction EHMP Addendum Template, available from AIR-EE.
- 21. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA): Comprehensive Environmental Restoration, Compensation, and Liability Act, Section 107(1), 1980, exemption for cleanup of legally applied pesticide products.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

2.1 PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT & SIGNAGE

- A. Provide workers with Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) according to the Contractor's PPE Assessment.
- B. Provide warning signs and labels to protect the workers and the public.

2.2 POLYETHYLENE SHEETING

Sheet plastic shall be new, and clear or black with at least 20-mil thickness. A 6-mil plastic sheet can be used to cover the stockpiles.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 GENERAL WORK PROCEDURES

A. Prior to beginning work, the Contractor, the Contractor's Qualified Environmental

- Professional, and DOTA Engineer or its representative shall discuss the approved Work Plan, as described in Paragraph 3.2 below, including work procedures and safety precautions.
- B. Communicate any existing, potential, or new hazards to workers before a job begins or as necessary. The workers shall be aware of the need for proper safety procedures and be familiar with the Contractor's Work Plan.
- C. Boundaries shall be established at each area where soil excavation is to be performed. The area shall be clearly identified to prevent unauthorized entry. Establish a control area by completely enclosing/roping-off the area where contaminated soil excavation, removal, stockpiling and disposal operations will be performed.
- D. Provide physical boundaries around the control area by roping-off the area to ensure that airborne concentrations of COPC will not exceed permissible exposure limits outside the control area.
- E. Where applicable, caution signs shall be placed at the entrances to each work area, located such that approaching personnel may read the signs and take necessary precautions before entering the work area. No one will be permitted in the work area unless the person is provided with appropriate training and protective equipment.
- F. It should be noted that, in some cases, the contamination may not be identifiable through visual and/or olfactory observation (e.g., soil contaminated with metals, PCBs, pesticides, etc.) and contaminant-specific field screening techniques may need to be implemented.
- G. Measure, monitor, and record worker exposure to toxic materials or harmful agents as necessary.
- H. Follow Decontamination regulations and procedures as necessary.
- I. Soil excavation activities, grading, and any disturbance of impacted soil may cause a potential exposure to Contractor's employees and the general public due to fugitive dust. The routes of exposure of dusts are by inhalation, ingestion, and dermal contact. The Contractor shall use engineering controls such as water spraying and wind barriers to control fugitive dust.
- J. The Contractor shall test residual soils not used as backfill for COPC. Soils with concentrations above regulatory and/or unrestricted use environmental action levels shall be disposed of in accordance with regulatory requirements.
- K. Report construction activities in areas with contaminated soil or groundwater by completing the appropriate forms in the DOTA EHE-EHMP, Appendix B.3 Construction Activities Release Response Plan. Submit the forms to the HDOH Office of Hazard Evaluation and Emergency Response (HEER Office) and provide a copy of the forms to the DOTA Engineer and DOTA AIR-EE.

3.2 PRECONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

- A. Submit the following a minimum of 30 calendar days prior to beginning any ground disturbing activities, for approval by DOTA AIR-EE.
 - 1. Contractor's Work Plan for Known or Suspected Areas of Contaminated Media:
 - In the Contractor shall submit their work plan which shall include, but not limited to, a Site-Specific Health and Safety Plan (HASP) or if needed, a C-EHMP. The work plan shall describe the procedures, engineering controls, and methods the Contractor will use during the excavation, temporary storage, handling, treatment, backfilling, and disposal of soil and/or water at the project site. The plan shall also include soil stockpiling and segregation, testing, contaminated soil and water quality testing, contaminated soil and water disposal procedures, backfilling procedures, personal protection requirements, work area isolation, construction barriers, wetting methods, decontamination procedures, and emergency procedures. The work plan shall be in accordance to all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations and latest amendments.

For locations within the airport which DOTA has already established a Site-Specific EHMP from previous projects, the DOTA's Site-Specific EHMP, shall govern, where applicable.

- b. The plan shall include the names of the Contractor's and their subcontractor's qualified personnel who will be supervising or managing the management of contaminated materials at the site. Include the personnel's phone number and qualifications.
- c. The plan shall include the name(s) of the Contractor's Qualified Environmental Professional, including their qualifications.
- d. Proposed schedule of work.
- e. A sketch identifying the location of temporary soil stockpiling and water storage devices, including pipes and appurtenances, if applicable.
- f. A map showing the location of the work and nearest medical facilities and hospitals.
- g. A copy of this Work Plan must be on the construction site and available at all times.
- h. The Work Plan shall be amended to reflect changes to the site or work conditions, as needed.

B. QUALIFIED ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL

The Contractor shall employ a Qualified Environmental Professional who possesses five (5) years, minimum, experience providing environmental oversight for the management of contaminated media during construction activities. The

Environmental Professional shall assist in the preparation of the Contractor's Work Plan by reviewing the work procedures, including the determination of the need for PPE, and to provide environmental oversight during construction. The Environmental Professional shall be identified in the Work Plan, including a list of their environmental qualifications, for approval by DOTA AIR-EE.

C. CONTRACTOR TRAINING

The Contractor and its subcontractors shall implement safe work places and practices by eliminating, mitigating, or protecting against existing or potential hazards to the workers who may be exposed to harmful, hazardous, and toxic materials and substances, including contaminated water and soil.

3.3 CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

A. SOIL EXCAVATION AND STOCKPILING

- 1. Notify the HDOH Clean Water Branch (CWB) at least 90 calendar days prior to disturbing contaminated soil from known areas of contamination. Notify the HDOH HEER Office at least seven (7) calendar days prior to construction activities that could disturb known contaminated soil.
- 2. The HDOH HEER Office shall be immediately notified if contaminated soils are encountered. The disturbance of contaminated soil shall be performed in accordance with the Contractor's approved Work Plan, the DOTA EHE-EHMP, or a C- EHMP Addendum where applicable. HDOH HEER Office will determine whether additional sampling is required. Provide a location map with Global Positioning System (GPS) coordinates and approximate depth (bgs) at which the contaminated soils were encountered to the DOTA Engineer and DOTA AIR-EE.
- During excavation and disturbance of impacted soil, all workers, supervisory
 personnel, subcontractors, and consultants must take precautionary measures
 as necessary to prevent exposure of the workers and the general public to
 chemicals of concern (COCs) by contaminated soil dust and inhalation of
 associated vapors.
- 4. The Contractor's Qualified Environmental Professional shall direct the segregation of the soil into three (3) separate soil piles: Pile No. 1 will consist of clean soil; Pile No. 2 will consist of soil excavated from areas found to be contaminated or suspected to be contaminated; and Pile No. 3 will consist of soil that is grossly contaminated. Contaminated soil stockpiles suspected contaminated soil stockpiles, and grossly contaminated soil stockpiles shall be placed onto 20-mil plastic sheeting. Underlay edges of the plastic sheeting with bermed soil. Ensure that the height of the bermed soil will be sufficient to prevent stormwater runoff from breaching it. Place the excavated soil inside the bermed area on top of the plastic sheeting. Cover the stockpiles with 6-mil plastic sheeting in the bermed area to mitigate dust concerns caused by wind and prevent contact with rainwater and stormwater runoff. Secure the plastic cover with sufficient ballast and place sediment control devices along the entire toe of each stockpile.

- 5. Each stockpile shall not exceed 100 cubic yards and shall be located away from drainage features, surface waters, and stormwater drainage paths. Or, the soils can be placed in watertight containers, such as 20-yard steel roll-off bins, drums, etc. These containers shall be covered.
- 6. The Contractor shall have representative soil samples taken from each stockpile (Pile No. 1, 2, and 3) and tested in accordance with HDOH guidelines, standards, and regulations, such that the soil sample report, prepared by the Contractor's Qualified Environmental Professional, can specifically state one of the following:
 - a. "The soil is not a regulated hazardous waste and is acceptable for disposal at a HDOH permitted facility."; or
 - b. "The soil is acceptable for unrestricted reuse."

Sampling and testing of the stockpiles shall be, at a minimum, in accordance to the latest edition of the HDOH's *Guidance for Soil Stockpile Characterization and Evaluation of Imported and Exported Fill Material*. The Contractor's Qualified Environmental Professional shall direct the soil sampling collection and testing methods in accordance with the most current guidelines. Stockpiles shall be tested using multi-increment (MI) sampling approaches. Appropriate decision unit (DU) volumes for larger stockpiles of soil should be discussed with the HDOH HEER Office on a case-by-case basis.

The Contractor shall also confirm, with the HDOH permitted facility, the facility's sampling requirements, as well as their standards for disposal.

- 7. Any liquid-phase oil or free product associated with the contaminated soil shall be drained prior to stockpiling. If feasible, the free product should be separated from the soil, properly stored, profiled, and disposed of at an approved recycling/disposal facility.
- 8. For any soils hauled off Airport property, the Contractor shall be responsible for the legal disposal of any soil. The Contractor shall implement and maintain the following:
 - a. A form, signed by the Contractor and haul truck driver. The form shall contain the following information:
 - i. The date the material is being taken off Airport property.
 - ii. The name of the haul trucking company.
 - iii. The haul truck number and license plate number.
 - iv. The quantity of material being loaded into the haul truck.
 - v. The disposal facility or location of where the material is to be taken.
 - vi. The time the truck left the project site.
 - b. The form and waste manifest from the HDOH permitted facility shall be provided to the Engineer or its representative by the close of the next working day. The Contractor shall verify that the quantity of material loaded into the truck, as indicated on the form, exactly matches the quantity of material disposed at the HDOH permitted facility, as indicated on the waste

manifest.

- c. The Contractor shall maintain a log that summarizes each form and waste manifest for ease of tracking and monitoring.
- d. All forms, waste manifest, and summary log shall be a condition of payment being made to the Contractor and shall be submitted with each progress payment. Failure to submit the above and/or should any quantity of material loaded into the truck, as indicated on the form, not exactly match the quantity of material disposed at the HDOH permitted facility, as indicated on the waste manifest, shall be reason for the State to withhold payment to the Contractor.
- Excavated soils can be reused onsite (within the construction site boundaries) with the prior approval of the DOTA AIR-EE, HDOH HEER Office, and subject to the following conditions:
 - a. Representative soil samples have been taken and tested in accordance with HDOH standards and regulations.
 - b. The contaminated soil can only be reused within proximity of its original excavation.
 - c. The contaminated soil is placed within areas more than 150 meters from surface water and drainage features.
 - d. The contaminated soil cannot be placed beneath or within the footprint of a planned building structure.
 - e. The contaminated soil can only be placed at an elevation above the tidally influenced high water table and at least 1-foot below the finish surface grade. The more highly impacted soil should be placed at the bottom of the excavation and the cleanest soil at the top of the excavation. At least 1-foot of clean soil must be placed as the final backfill layer at the top. The excavation shall then be capped with an impervious layer, such as concrete and asphalt.
 - f. The contaminated soil cannot contain any free oil, oil sheens, oil stains, or total petroleum hydrocarbon (TPH) concentrations exceeding 5,000 parts per million (ppm).
 - g. The contaminated soil is not considered a hazardous waste pursuant to Federal and State laws.
 - h. Contaminated soil shall not be reused in areas that are uncontaminated.
- 10. Excavated soils can be reused offsite (off Airports property) with the prior approval of the DOTA AIR-EE, HDOH HEER Office, and subject to the following conditions:
 - a. Representative soil samples have been taken and tested in accordance with

- HDOH standards and regulations.
- b. The work shall be performed in accordance to the latest edition of the HDOH's Guidance for Soil Stockpile Characterization and Evaluation of Imported and Exported Fill Material.
- c. A signed agreement with the receiving facility acknowledging the test results of the soil samples and acceptance of the soil is required to be submitted to the DOTA Engineer and DOTA AIR-EE ten (10) calendar days prior to hauling of the soil to the receiving facility.
- d. The contaminated soil shall not contain any free oil, oil sheens, oil stains, or total petroleum hydrocarbon (TPH) concentrations exceeding 5,000 parts per million (ppm).
- e. The contaminated soil is not considered a hazardous waste pursuant to Federal and State laws.
- 11. All soil that is reused onsite or offsite shall be included in the Closeout Report. The report shall include, at a minimum, a copy of the signed agreement from the receiving facility accepting the soil, a copy of the soil test results, the quantity of soil received by the facility, a location map of the reused soil including GPS coordinates of its limits, the depth and thickness of the soil's placement, a brief description of the purpose of the soil's re-use, and photos of the site conditions after placement has been completed.

B. **GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT**

Soil and groundwater may be impacted by petroleum hydrocarbons, dissolved metals, and/or pesticides, and may be encountered during soil excavation.

- The disturbance of contaminated groundwater shall be performed in accordance with the approved Work Plan, DOTA EHE-EHMP, or Site-Specific EHMP, where applicable. HDOH HEER Office will determine whether additional sampling is required.
- If contaminated groundwater is uncovered at a previously unknown source or site on the project, the Contractor shall immediately notify the DOTA Engineer, DOTA AIR-EE, and HDOH HEER Office of its discovery. Provide a location map with GPS coordinates and approximate depth of the groundwater (bgs) at which the discovery was encountered.
- 3. During excavation and disturbance of impacted groundwater, all workers, supervisory personnel, subcontractors and consultants must take precautionary measures as necessary to prevent exposure of the workers and the general public to COCs and inhalation of associated vapors. Free product, sheen, and impacted groundwater must be managed properly.
- 4. Groundwater that exhibits evidence of possible contamination, i.e., odor, visual sheen, free product, coloration, and PID measurement, shall be properly stored when removed from the ground. Storage devices shall be watertight and leakfree to prevent discharge of the water into the surrounding ground, drainage

system, and surface waters.

When disconnecting pipes and hoses from storage devices and equipment, residual waters contained in the pipes and hoses shall also be prevented from discharging into the surrounding ground, drainage system, and surface waters.

- 5. Representative water samples shall be taken and tested in accordance with Federal and State guidelines, standards, and regulations.
- 6. If free product is present in the extracted groundwater, it must be separated from the groundwater, profiled, and disposed of at an HDOH approved recycling/disposal facility. Free product shall not be moved from one excavation to another. Engineering measures shall be taken to prevent the transfer of the free product during dewatering. Under no circumstances shall water contaminated with free product be discharged from a dewatering pit.
- 7. At least once daily, remove oil observed floating on the groundwater during excavation activities using a vacuum truck, absorbent pad, or other methods approved by HDOH HEER Office. Excavations shall not be backfilled until the floating oil is removed to the maximum extent practicable, which is when further use of vacuum trucks, absorbent pads, or other approved methods do not result in further floating oil removal. Backfilling of any excavation shall not occur without concurrence from DOTA AIR-EE and HDOH HEER Office.
- 8. Avoid any releases of contaminated groundwater to surface water bodies or areas beyond the work area.
- 9. Groundwater shall only be re-infiltrated in the ground with the prior approval of DOTA AIR-EE and HDOH HEER Office, and subject to the following conditions:
 - a. Within 200-feet of its original location or source and returned to the same aquifer which is not a current or potential drinking water source. Reinfiltration shall not contaminate uncontaminated areas.
 - More than 150 meters from surface waters, drainage features, and drainage structures.
 - c. Groundwater does not contain any gross contaminants.
 - d. If petroleum free product is present in the groundwater, the free product shall be removed prior to transfer of the groundwater to the re-infiltration site. Free product shall be removed at least once daily until no free product is observed after 24 hours. The free product shall be disposed at an HDOHapproved facility.
 - e. Groundwater is not considered a hazardous waste pursuant to Federal and State law.
 - f. Re-infiltration shall be conducted at a slow enough rate so that it does not flow past the designated infiltration area, enter storm drains, or impact surface water in the area.

- g. If discharging to a re-infiltration trench, the trench must not be an underground injection control (UIC) well by HDOH's Safe Drinking Water Branch (SDWB) definitions. If some part of the trench system is deemed to be a UIC well, then the whole system shall be considered an injection well.
- h. Advance clearance from HDOH SDWB is required if a re-infiltration trench is deeper than 10 feet.
- i. If a UIC well is used for re-infiltration, the Contractor is responsible to obtain the necessary permits, including, but not limited to, HDOH's UIC Permit. The Contractor shall meet and comply with all permit requirements, including, but not limited to, well construction, placement, use, and closure.
- 10. Under circumstances where contaminated groundwater cannot be re-infiltrated, proper disposal must be conducted with the prior approval of the DOTA AIR-EE, HDOH SDWB, HDOH Solid and Hazardous Waste Branch (SHWB), and HDOH HEER Office. This is also subject to the following conditions:
 - a. Discharge to the local or municipal sanitary sewer system after acquiring appropriate permit(s) from City and County (if applicable and if allowable by the receiving governmental agency) prior to discharge. If discharge water was generated within contaminated areas, additional coordination with HDOH HEER Office is required, and Aquatic Habitat Criteria (Chronic Toxicity) shall apply to discharge within these areas, in addition to any criteria applicable to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit or pretreatment facility. Water discharged to a sanitary sewer may be required to meet Water Quality Standards.
 - b. Notification to the appropriate agencies and other pertinent information related to the discharge must be provided upon request.
 - c. The Contractor is responsible for the legal disposal or discharge of any groundwater that is not re-infiltrated, and shall provide the DOTA AIR-EE with copies of waste manifests.
 - d. For any groundwater hauled off Airport property, the Contractor shall have representative samples taken and tested in accordance with HDOH guidelines, standards, and regulations. A copy of the groundwater test result shall be submitted to DOTA AIR-EE. The groundwater shall not be disposed offsite without the approval of DOTA AIR-EE and the HDOH permitted facility that is receiving the groundwater. Furnish documentation from the receiving facility indicating that they acknowledge the groundwater test results, including their approval to dispose the groundwater at their facility.

C. RELEASE REPORTING

Encountering previously unknown, suspected, or confirmed contaminated soil or groundwater during subsurface construction activities is considered a release and shall be reported to HDOH HEER Office (phone: 808-586-4249, or after hours at 808-236-8200). Copies of the HDOH Release Report, HDOH issued Release Number, and email correspondence (if applicable), shall be furnished to the DOTA Engineer

and DOTA AIR-EE.

- 1. Upon the discovery of contaminated soil and/or groundwater, the Contractor shall immediately notify the DOTA Engineer, DOTA AIR-EE, and HDOH HEER Office.
- 2. A reportable release of hazardous substances or contaminated soil or groundwater may be indicated by, but not limited to, any of the following:
 - A petroleum sheen on the groundwater in an excavation.
 - Any free product that appears on groundwater.
 - Visual or olfactory evidence of contamination (e.g., unusual discoloration, buried containers, fumes, unknown liquids).
- 3. Comply with DOTA and HDOH HEER Office requirements. A written report shall be provided to the HDOH HEER Office. The *Hawaii Hazardous Substance Written Follow-up Notification Form* is provided in the DOTA EHE-EHMP, Appendix B.1. Photos shall be included to document the incident. The Contractor shall keep a copy of the completed Form B.1 and provide copies of the written report to the DOTA Engineer and DOTA AIR-EE.
- 4. If free product is encountered, report the release in accordance with HAR § 11-451.

Releases that occur during construction activities or releases due to unforeseen events (spill) shall also be reported.

- 1. Report all spills to immediately to AIR-EE, State Engineer, and appropriate airport personnel and regulatory agencies (if applicable) following the DOTA Spill Reporting Fact Sheets for each airport. Spill Reporting Fact Sheets can be found on DOTA's Environmental Webpage for Construction site Runoff at https://hidot.hawaii.gov/airports/doing-business/engineering/environmental/construction-site-runoff-control-program/.
- 2. In the event of a release of a hazardous substance that causes an imminent threat to human health or the environment, the first call shall be to 911.
- Small spills of petroleum or hazardous substances (less than 25 gallons) which
 are capable of being cleaned up within 72 hours and do not threaten ground or
 surface waters shall be cleaned up immediately.
- 4. Report spills of a certain size (e.g., volume of greater than 25 gallons or not contained within 72 hours), per HAR § 11-451, to HDOH HEER Office and the National Response Center immediately. Comply with the HDOH HEER Office requirements. A written report shall be provided to the HDOH HEER Office within 30 calendar days of a Reportable Quantity spill cleanup. The *Hawaii Hazardous Substance Written Follow-up Notification Form* is provided in the DOTA EHE-EHMP, Appendix B.1. Photos shall be included to document the incident. The Contractor shall keep a copy of the completed Form B.1, and provide copies of the written report, the HDOH issued Release Number, and email correspondence (if applicable) to the DOTA Engineer and DOTA AIR-EE.

5. Any spill that enters a body of water, onto an adjoining shoreline, or discharges into the storm drain system, HDOH CWB must also be immediately notified and the National Response Center notified within 24 hours. Report significant spills to the U.S. Coast Guard.

D. FINAL CLEANUP

- When work which disturbs contaminated soil has been completed, the State will
 visually inspect the work area for evidence of contaminated materials and direct
 the Contractor to clean and remove remaining contaminated materials. The
 Contractor shall not dismantle the work area boundaries prior to authorization by
 the State.
- 2. Any equipment which contacts contaminated materials shall be cleaned with a water spray immediately upon completion of work. The wash location shall be located immediately adjacent to the contaminated area. All wash water and solid waste shall be disposed of in accordance with the Work Plan. The wash water shall not be allowed to discharge into the drainage system and surface waters.

E. AIR MONITORING

- 1. Air monitoring shall be conducted when petroleum-contaminated soil (PCS), contaminated groundwater, free product, or chlorinated solvents (e.g., PCE, TCE, etc.) is present in an excavated area. The monitoring shall include both work area and perimeter measurements of volatile organic compound (VOC) vapors. Appropriate response actions shall be taken in conformance to Federal and State regulatory requirements and guidelines. The response actions shall include ensuring that on-site workers have the appropriate level of PPE and the general public is not affected adversely.
- 2. Air monitoring shall be conducted with a conventional photoionization detector (PID) to measure total VOC vapor concentrations. If high levels of benzene are anticipated, an Ultra-Rae PID, which is benzene-specific, shall also be used.
- 3. If toxic gases are a potential concern, air monitoring of the lower explosive limit (LEL) shall be conducted using a multi-gas meter to determine if a hazardous atmosphere exists.
- 4. Air monitoring shall be conducted for at least three (3) full 8-hour shifts to establish a negative exposure assessment for worker's exposure to airborne contaminants. After the establishment of the negative worker's exposure, periodic monitoring shall be conducted once every seven (7) calendar days to document worker exposure for the duration of the contaminated soil work.
- 5. Work area and perimeter air monitoring shall be conducted throughout the entire duration of the contaminated soil work to ensure unprotected personnel are not exposed above permissible exposure limits at all times. If the outside boundary levels are at or exceed permissible exposure limits, work shall be stopped, and the Contractor's Qualified Environmental Professional and DOTA Engineer shall be immediately contacted to address the situation causing the increased levels.

6. Submit air sampling results to the DOTA Engineer within five (5) calendar days after the samples are collected, signed by the testing laboratory employee performing the air monitoring.

F. <u>UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS (UST) AND UTILITY PIPES</u>

1. For any UST or pipeline discovered or planned removal, the nature of the UST or pipeline, and whether they are inactive, shall be determined prior to removal. Immediately notify the DOTA Engineer and DOTA AIR-EE of the discovery.

If unanticipated petroleum pipelines are discovered, contact HDOH HEER Office within 24 hours after encountering them.

- 2. The Contractor shall record field observations of the UST and pipelines. These observations shall include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Location relative to fixed landmarks, including GPS coordinates. Provide a location map that shows the UST and pipelines that were encountered. The map must include a North arrow and a scale.
 - b. Depth, diameter, length, and type of pipe, if applicable. Describe the condition of the pipe.
 - c. Type of fuel or product, including analytical laboratory reports for the product that is recovered.
 - d. Beginning and ending fluid levels, if applicable.
 - e. Volume of each type of product removed.
 - f. Flow rates, if applicable.
 - g. Direction of flow.
 - h. Detailed photographs.
 - i. Detailed description of actions taken following the discovery, such as, cutting, product removal, and disposal.

Provide records of the field observations to the DOTA Engineer, DOTA AIR-EE, and HDOH HEER Office.

3. Prior to removal of a UST, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the DOTA Engineer, for review by DOTA AIR-EE, a Site-Specific plan. All work associated with USTs shall be in compliance with HAR § 11-280.1 requirements, and HDOH HEER Office and HDOH SHWB requirements.

The contractor shall also complete the HDOH *Notice of Intent to Close Underground Storage Tanks* form and submit it to the DOTA Engineer for submission to HDOH SHWB (UST Section) by DOTA AIR-EE.

Prior to the removal of the UST, the Contractor shall receive approval from DOTA

- AIR-EE and HDOH HEER Office.
- 4. The UST or pipeline segment must be drained of its content or determined that it is empty of liquids or flammable vapors prior to the removal. Any petroleum fluids recovered must be representatively sampled and tested to determine how they can be recycled or disposed in full accordance with HAR § 11-58.1 and § 11-260–279, and any other Federal and State regulations.
- 5. Only personnel knowledgeable and trained in pipeline and UST removal shall cut, drain, and remove USTs and pipelines. Prior to cutting, plastic sheeting and absorbent material shall be placed below and adjacent to the cutting location. Any residual fluid in the UST or pipeline must be properly contained on the sheeting and prevented from discharging into the surrounding soil or entering any drainage system and surface waters.
- 6. The cut-off ends of the pipeline segments, that remain in-place, must be filled with concrete and appropriately sealed to prevent any potential leakage and contact with groundwater.
- 7. If the waste pipe or UST are to be stored onsite prior to disposal, the area shall be lined with polyethylene plastic sheeting, 10 mil or thicker, and bermed to contain any free product. Some viscous products may appear to be immobile, however, after exposed to atmosphere heating, can liquefy. The waste pipe segment shall be stored on appropriate dunnage with the ends of the pipe sealed or covered to protect the interior of the pipe from contact with rainwater and wind.
- 8. All removed pipelines and USTs shall be properly disposed or recycled.
- For USTs, a UST Removal Report including all sampling activities required under HAR § 11-280.1 shall be prepared and submitted to the DOTA Engineer, DOTA AIR-EE, and HDOH SHWB (UST Section).

3.4 POST-CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

- A. Submit the following within 30 calendar days after work is completed.
 - 1. Close-out Report
 - a. A signed certificate stating that the removal and disposal of all contaminated materials were completed in accordance with the Contractor's approved Work Plan or C-EHMP Addendum, and all applicable Federal, State, and local rules and regulations.
 - b. All approved DOTA EHE-EHMP deviation request forms. (Reference Appendix B of the DOTA EHE-EHMP.)
 - c. All Site-Specific EHMP, if applicable.
 - d. All testing, laboratory results, and reports for any soil, groundwater, soil vapor, UST, pipeline, and other samplings taken.
 - e. All disposal forms, waste manifests, and summary logs.

- f. Any results from project air monitoring.
- g. Record of Field Observations, including location map with GPS coordinates, limits, and depths of any contaminated media (soil, groundwater, etc.) that were encountered at previously unknown source or sites on the project. Include a copy of the completed *Hawaii Hazardous Substance Written Follow-up Notification* form that was submitted to HDOH and all other associated documents.
- h. If any contaminated soil was removed offsite (off of Airport Property), at a minimum, include the following:
 - A copy of the signed agreement from the receiving facility acknowledging the test result of the soil samples and indicating acceptance of the soil for reuse.
 - Copies of the test results of the soil sampling.
- i. If any contaminated soil was re-used onsite (within the construction site boundaries), at a minimum, include the following:
 - Copies of the test results of the soil sampling.
 - The quantity of soil that is re-used on-site.
 - Location map of the re-used soil. Include GPS coordinates of its limits, if the area is accessible.
 - A brief description of the purpose of the re-used soil (e.g., general fill, utility trench backfill material, etc.). Include the depth and thickness of its placement.
 - Photos of the site after placement of the re-use soil has been completed.
- j. Record of Field Observation of any unanticipated UST or pipeline discovered during construction activities, including a copy of the completed HDOH *Notice of Intent to Close Underground Storage Tanks* form and all other associated documents.

The Close-out Report shall be by each individual contaminated media and shall include all appropriate documentations. The Close-out Reports for each contaminated media can be submitted separately or combined in a 3-ring binder with divider tabs.

PART 4 – MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

4.1 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

Work under this Section will be paid for under the various contract items as shown below.

For ALLOWANCE items in the Proposal Schedule, the allowance is an estimate and the amount shall not exceed the maximum amount shown in the Proposal Schedule. Payment shall be the actual cost as invoiced by the Contractor and approved by the DOTA

Engineer. The Contractor shall be allowed to include overhead, profit, insurance and/or other mark-ups, as stipulated in Section 9.5 of the 2016 General Provisions for Construction Projects, Air and Water Transportation Facilities Divisions.

Item No.	<u>Item</u>	<u>Unit</u>
01562.1	Management of Contaminated Medias	Allowance
01562.2	Unforeseen Conditions	Allowance



Should the DOTA receive reports of any illegal dumping of material, and if illegal dumping is confirmed to have occurred, the DOTA will assess a Liquated Damage amount of \$5,000 per truck per day, until the illegal dumped material has been cleaned up or the incident has been remedied to the HDOH's concurrence. The Contractor shall not be entitled to recover any Liquidated Damages assessed, even after the non-compliance has been corrected.

The Contractor shall also be responsible for all citations, fines, and penalties levied by HDOH or EPA against the State due to the Contractor's failure to properly manage contaminated medias, including non-compliance with the DOTA EHE-EHMP, DOTA Site-Specific EHMP, or C-EHMP Addendum. The Contractor shall reimburse the State within 30 calendar days for the full amount of outstanding cost that the State has incurred, or the State shall deduct all incurred costs from the Contractor's monthly progress payments.

If the Contractor fails to satisfactorily address the non-compliance item, DOTA reserves the right to employ outside assistance or use the State's own labor forces to provide necessary corrective measures. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for all cost and time. The State shall charge the Contractor such incurred costs plus any associated project engineering costs and shall make appropriate deductions from the Contractor's monthly progress payment.

END OF SECTION

APRON LIGHTING SYSTEM EMERGENCY REPAIRS KAHULUI AIRPORT KAHULUI, MAUI, HAWAII

State Project No. CM1424-53

PROPOSAL SCHEDULE

Item No.	Description	Unit	Total	
I.	GENERAL REQUIREMENT			
01524.1	Construction Waste Management	L.S.	\$	
01561.1	Construction Site Runoff Control Program	L.S.	\$	
01700.1	Mobilization (Not to exceed 6% of sum of all items, excluding this item, all allowances and force account items)	L.S.	\$	
01000.1	Basis of Bid for Item No. 01000.1 shall be entire work, complete in accordance with the drawings and specifications, but not including the work indicated or specified under Bid Items 01524.1, 01561.1, 01700.1 and ALLOWANCE.	L.S.	\$	
II.	ALLOWANCES			
01000.2	Miscellaneous Repair	Allow.	\$	50,000.00
01562.1	Management of Contaminated Medias	Allow.	\$	10,000.00
01562.2	Unforeseen Condition	Allow.	\$	50,000.00
01565.1	Security Measures	Allow.	\$	10,000.00



\$

TOTAL AMOUNT FOR COMPARISION OF BIDS

NOTES:

The bid prices herein shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals necessary to construct all items in place, including installation and testing of equipment, complete and ready for operation, all in accordance with the plans and specifications.

- Note 1: Bids shall include all Federal, State, County and other applicable taxes and fees.
- Note 2: The TOTAL AMOUNT FOR COMPARISON OF BIDS shall be used to determine the lowest responsible bidder.
- Note 3: Bidders shall complete all unit prices and amounts. Failure to do so may be grounds for rejection of bid.
- Note 4: The State reserves the right to reject any or all Bids and to waive any defects in said Bids in the best interest of the State.
- Note 5: Submission of a Bid is a warranty that the bidder has made an examination of the project site and is fully aware of all conditions to be encountered in performing the work and the requirements of the plans and specifications.

The bidder's attention is directed to <u>Section 2.11 - BID SECURITY and Section 2.24 - REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS</u> of the "General Provisions", as amended by the Special Provisions.

Bidder shall be paid for actual work performed as directed by the Engineer for allowance items. Bidder will not be paid overhead and profit for unused allowance funds.

- Note 6: If the lowest TOTAL AMOUNT FOR COMPARISON OF BIDS is less than, or approximately equal to the funds available for this project, an award will be made to the lowest responsible bidder. If the project still exceeds the funds available, the State reserves the right to negotiate with the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder as permitted under Section 103D-302, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), to reduce the scope of work and award a contract thereafter. No additional compensation will be paid by the State for losses, including overhead and profit, resulting from reduced scope of work.
- Note 7: Bidders shall submit and upload the complete proposal to HIePRO prior to the bid opening date and time. Proposals received after said due date and time shall not be considered. Original (wet ink, hard copy) proposal documents are not required to be submitted. Contract award shall be based on evaluation of proposals submitted and uploaded to HIePRO. Any additional support documents explicitly designated as confidential and/or proprietary shall be uploaded as a separate file to HIePRO. Do not include confidential and/or proprietary documents with the proposal. The record of each bidder and respective bid shall be open to public inspection.

STATE OF HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AIRPORTS DIVISION

MEETING MINUTES

DATE: October 11, 2023 **TIME**: 10:00 a.m.

LOCATION: Microsoft TEAMS

PROJECT: Apron Lighting System Emergency Repairs

Kahului Airport

State Project No. CM1424-53

PRESENT: See attached list

SUBJECT: Pre-Bid Meeting

MEETING SUMMARY:

I. GENERAL DISCUSSION

- 1. Introduction of all attendees. See attached attendance sheet.
- 2. Participants involved with the project were introduced (State Project Manager only, Mr. Benton Ho).
- 3. There will be an addendum coming out shortly to postpone the bid opening to November 10, 2023.
- 4. All questions must be submitted in writing to the State Project Manager by October 27, 2023, by 4:30 pm. Questions can be emailed to benton.ho@hawaii.gov

This meeting is to clarify general questions only. If there is a conflict between what was stated in this meeting and the bid documents, the bid documents shall govern. Any significant changes will be issued through an addendum. A copy of the meeting minutes will be issued to all attendees.

- 5. Design Consultant, Ron Ho & Associates.
- 6. This is a state project is not federally funded.

- 7. Important items brought to attendees attention:
 - Bid Opening is changed from October 27, 2023 to November 10, 2023 by Addendum No.1.
 - Last day for Substitution Requests is fourteen (14) calendar days prior to bid opening or October 27, 2023. Submit to Mr. Benton Ho, via email at: benton.ho@hawaii.gov.
 - Supplemental Special Provisions now have NTP immediately after contract execution, not set by mutual agreement with contractor.
- 8. Project duration is 180 calendar days from NTP. Liquidated damages in the amount of \$150 per calendar day will be assessed if work is not completed within the contract time.
- 9. Unless there is a problem with the award process, the State intends to issue the Notice to Proceed date 35 calendar days from Bid Opening date or December 15, 2023.
- 10. All of the work is in a secured area. Due to heightened security requirements, there are new security procedures in place. The contractor shall ensure that all access gates are secured at all times. Under no circumstances shall tools, equipment or materials are left in areas where the public can gain access to these items. Other security requirements are stated in Section 01565, Security Measures.
- 11. Subject to approval from the Airport Manager, access to the airport will probably be limited through Access Checkpoint 'A'. All vehicles entering the AOA may be subject to search.
- 12. Requests for AOA badges, AOA stickers, ramp licenses, etc. shall be submitted within 14 calendar days after award of contract. In addition to the requirements stated in the Contract Bid Documents, all Contractors shall comply with the requirements and procedures of the Contractor's Training Guide.
- 13. Pending the availability of space on airport property, the State will issue a permit to the Contractor for the use of the space, at no charge, to be used specifically for a field office and/or storage of materials and equipment. Since space on airport property is extremely limited, the State does not guarantee that the space provided to the Contractor will be in close proximity to the project site. The State will make every effort to provide the Contractor with space on airport property, however, should the State determine that no space is available for such use(s), the responsibility shall then be on the Contractor

Meeting Minutes Page 3 October 11, 2023

to find space outside of airport property. Staging areas shall be secured at all times.

II. QUESTIONS

Questions from Pre-Bid Meeting

1. Do the specified light fixtures need to comply with the Hawaii Dark Sky Regulations?

Response: According to our electrical engineering consultant, no, since the work is a temporary installation and is a "one for one" fixture replacement. There is currently a new apron lighting project under design that will be in compliant with the regulations and ordinances.

If there are any omissions or corrections to be made to the minutes of the meeting, please respond in writing by October 27, 2023.

Meeting adjourned at: 10:15 a.m.

c: All attendees (See attached sign-in sheet)

MEETING ATTENDANCE SHEET Pre-Bid Meeting

Project Name: Apron Lighting System Emergency Repairs

Kahului Airport CM1424-53

Project No. CM1424-53

Meeting Location: Microsoft TEAMS Date: October 11, 2023

Name: Jacqueline Tuliau	Company: ELCCO Inc.	Phone:
Title: Bid Coordinator	Address:	Fax:
Thie. Bid Goordinator		E-Mail:jtuliau@eleccoelectric
Name: Pete Fulkerson	Company: JCI	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
Tido.		E-Mail: pete.fulkerson@jci.com
Name: Jeff Hadley	Company: JCI	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
Tiuo.		E-Mail: jeff.1.hadley-ext@jci.com
Name: Benton Ho	Company: DOTA	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
Tiuo.		E-Mail: benton.ho@hawaii.gov
Name:	Company:	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
1140.		E-Mail:
Name:	Company:	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
		E-Mail:
Name:	Company:	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
		E-Mail:
Name:	Company:	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
		E-Mail:
Name:	Company:	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
		E-Mail:
Name:	Company:	Phone:
Title:	Address:	Fax:
. 1		E-Mail:

RESPONSES TO REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI/QUESTIONS)

The following is provided for information:

1. Question: "I have looked through the specifications section for this project on the HIePRO website but was not able to find Sections 02411 or 01715."

Response: Both Sections, 02411 and 01715 were inadvertently included in the bid specifications and will be deleted in this addendum.

2. Question: "Per the specs, there are two requirements listed that conflict. Per section 2.7, it does not mention having to submit six (6) sets as stated on the Sample Request for Substitution. Could you please confirm?"

Response: Section 01300 will be replaced in its entirety.